
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

January 18, 2024 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, January 18, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – January 4, 2024 
          Work Session – January 9, 2024 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Public Hearing – Citizen Participation – 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget Preparation. 

Explanation: Each year, Council holds public hearings to facilitate input from citizens for the upcoming FY2024-25 
fiscal year budget. This is the first of five (5) scheduled public hearings. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Presentation - Audit - City Controller. 

Explanation:  Paul Matz of the audit firm Rehmann will give a presentation of the 06/30/2023 audit results. 
 
2. Approval – TMF (Technical, Managerial, and Financial) -LSLR Grant Application - Water. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to hire and retain the services of C2AE of Escanaba, 
MI to assist the City of Escanaba Water Department in preparing an application for the TMF-LSLR Grant Funding to 
verify water service line materials in an amount not to exceed $1,500.00. 
 

3. Approval - Energy Optimization Program – Electric.  
Explanation: Administration is seeking approval for the 2024 Energy Optimization Program in the amount of $150,000. 
This is a budgeted item. The Electrical Advisory Committee supports and recommends this program. 
 

4. Approval – Concrete Pile Bid – DPW 
Explanation: Administration is seeking approval to hire Havelka Construction in the amount of $22,000 to crush the 
remaining concrete pile. 
 

5. Approval – MERS Withdrawal and Asset Transfer Agreement – Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the MERS Defined Benefit Plan Withdrawal and 
Asset Transfer Agreement.  
 
 



Agenda – January 18, 2024 
 
6. Approval – MDOT Performance Resolution for Municipalities – Manager 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of a resolution for the annual permit for work in the 
State Highway Right of Way. 

 
APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted  

 
 
James R. McNeil  
City Manager 

  



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 

Thursday, January 4, 2024 
 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from December 21, 2023, as submitted. 

 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – Scheduling of Public Hearings – 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget 
Preparation – Citizen Participation – Administration. 
 

Each year, the City Council holds public hearings to facilitate input from citizens for 
the upcoming fiscal year budget. Administration sought City Council approval to 
schedule the first of three (3) public hearings for January 18, 2024. Additionally, 
Administration sought City Council approval to schedule additional public hearings for 
February 15, 2024, and March 21, 2024. 
 
NB-1 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to schedule 
public hearings for January 18, 2024, February 15, 2024, and March 21, 2024, for 
citizen input on the 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget. 



City Council Minutes  
January 4, 2024 – cont. 
 

2 
 

NB-2 Approval – Garbage Cans – Public Works. 
 

Public Works requested City Council approval to purchase 832 cans from Cascade 
Engineering in the amount of $45,246. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to purchase 832 cans from 
Cascade Engineering in the amount of $45,246. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

• City Council Work Session January 9, 2024, at 3:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.  

• City Council and Administration will be holding informational sessions throughout 
the year keeping the residents informed of the status of new or ongoing projects.  
 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Work Session Meeting 

Tuesday, January 9, 2024 
 
Pursuit to a special meeting notice posted January 2, 2024, the meeting was called to 
order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
  
Absent: None 
   
Also Present:  City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department 

Heads, media, and members of the public. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Discussion – 2024-25 Operating Budget Preparation. 
 

Administration led a discussion concerning the upcoming 2024-25 operating budget 
and sought Council input on items the Council as a whole would like to see considered 
for inclusion in the budget. Additionally, the various departments updated the Council 
on budgetary opportunities and challenges for the upcoming year. 
 

• City Manager McNeil provided a general review of the overall budget and 
expectations regarding Revenue Sharing, Tax Revenues, General Fund, and 
State Personal Property Tax.  

 

• City Controller Melissa Becotte discussed the revenue sharing picture; discussed 
increase workload for staff with pension plan. No major equipment purchases. The 
rest of the Controller’s budget will be “normal” for this year’s budget. Also 
discussed City Hall Maintenance Department budget requests.  

 

• City Recreation Director Kimberly Peterson reviewed the Recreation budget, 
projects, equipment, building maintenance, employees, and grant updates.  
 

• Water/Wastewater Superintendent Jeff Lampi updated Council on the current and 
future status of his departments. Lampi discussed construction projects, 
water/wastewater projects, maintenance costs, staffing update, equipment 
purchases, grant opportunities, applications for loans, future problems, and 
discussed capital improvement. Mr. Lampi gave a handout and breakdown of 



City Council Minutes         
January 9, 2024 – cont.  
 

 2 

proposed expenditures. City Manager McNeil gave an overview of street project 
proposals.  

 

• City Library Director Carolyn Stacey discussed budget items including penal fines, 
staffing, technology needs, outreach program, operating costs, book mobile, and 
grants. 
 

• Downtown Development Authority Director Craig Woerpel discussed downtown 
Escanaba, marketing and promotions, business entrepreneurship, maintenance of 
marketplace, vandalism, and events update. 

 

• City Treasurer/HR Administrator Heather Calouette discussed staff update, 
improvements to payment drop off, BSA software update.  

 

• Public Safety Director John Gudwer discussed budget items such as training, 
staffing, new body and dash cameras, building maintenance, attracting new 
officers to vacant positions, and continue the conversation of a new ladder truck. 
 
 
DuBord moved to go into a recess. 
Time being: 4:34 p.m. 
 
Flath moved to go back into session. 
Time being 4:43 p.m. 

 
 

• Electric Superintendent Gerald Pirkola discussed capital and operating budget, 
projects, power contract and rates, compacity, renewable Clean Energy Bill 
update, staffing, building projects, equipment purchases, AMI installation, cold 
storage garage, pole testing, and tree trimming. 

 

• Planning and Zoning Administrator Tyler Anthony discussed zoning updates, 
possible fee increases, office equipment purchases, grant opportunities, and 
budget update. 

 

• Public Works Superintendent Kent DuBord discussed equipment purchase, 
staffing update, building maintenance, fuel station replacement or upgrade, grants, 
Salt Dome update, sidewalks, woodchipper, garbage trucks, and security 
cameras. 
 

• City Clerk/IT Administrator Phil DeMay discussed the upcoming elections. 
Proposed a pay increase for Election Inspectors and Chairs, business equipment 
purchases, training, and staffing.  

• IT Administrator DeMay discussed the current technology projects and discussed 
updating the City Meraki firewall license. Discussed security camera project in the 
future. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes         
January 9, 2024 – cont.  
 

 3 

• City Assessor James McNeil discussed the preparation of the 2024 tax base; it is 
expected to remain stable. There are no major additions or subtractions to the 
Assessor or Board of Review budgets; 

 

• Harbor Master Shane Sanville was not present. 
 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
 
Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 5:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ______________________ 
City Clerk     Mark Ammel, Mayor  
 
 















Agenda Item: _________________ 

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 

Name: 

Department: 

Item: 

Explanation for request: 

Date: ________________________

Meeting date requested:







 

1 
 

MERS DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
WITHDRAWAL AND ASSET TRANSFER AGREEMENT 

 

This MERS Defined Benefit Withdrawal and Asset Transfer Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered 
into by and between the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan (“MERS”), a 
statutory public corporation with offices located at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan, 
48917 and the City of Escanaba (“Municipality”), with offices located at 410 Ludington St., P.O. 
Box 948, Escanaba, Michigan, 49829, (each a “Party,” and collectively, the “Parties”) as of the 
last date of execution below. 
  
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the termination of Municipality’s participation in 
MERS’ Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 401(a) qualified governmental defined benefit 
plan (“DB Plan”) and to transfer all assets held in trust by MERS to a non-MERS 401(a) qualified 
pension plan, and to transfer all fiduciary duties and liabilities related to the DB Plan to 
Municipality. 
 

RECITALS 
 
Whereas, MERS is a governmental multiple employer pension plan and plan administrator, 
authorized by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement Act, Michigan PA 427 of 1984, as amended; 
 
Whereas MERS’ services include administration of a defined benefit pension plan qualified under 
section 401(a) of the IRC, the terms of which are governed by the MERS Plan Document, as 
amended; 
 
Whereas, Municipality joined the DB Plan by resolution of its City Council, dated July 1, 1946, 
and; 
 
Whereas, MERS Plan Document Section 11 and the MERS Termination Policy and Procedure as 
adopted March 15, 2018 and amended through February 17, 2022 (the “Policy”) provide 
procedures by which a participating municipality or court (“participating municipality”) may 
terminate participation in the DB Plan and transfer the participating municipality’s reserve assets 
and liabilities under the DB Plan to a non-MERS pension plan qualified under IRC section 401(a); 
 
Whereas, in satisfaction of the requirements of the MERS Plan Document and the Policy, 
Municipality and MERS are required to enter into a defined benefit withdrawal and asset transfer 
agreement to effectuate Municipality’s termination of participation and the transfer of funds and 
liabilities to a non-MERS pension plan qualified under IRC section 401(a); 
 
Whereas, upon the entry into a defined benefit withdrawal and asset transfer agreement, all assets 
held in Municipality’s reserve(s) with MERS to fund the DB Plan and all liabilities attributable to 
the Municipality’s participation in the DB Plan, together with the fiduciary and other legal duties 
attendant to the DB Plan, shall be transferred to the successor non-MERS pension plan qualified 
under IRC section 401(a) identified by Municipality; 
 



 

2 
 

Whereas, Municipality has substantively complied with and fulfilled all of the requirements of 
Section 11 of the Plan Document (and the Policy incorporated herein) and has timely delivered a 
copy of the resolution (reflecting a two-thirds vote of that governing body of Municipality that is 
empowered to take such action (“Governing Body”)) terminating participation in MERS’ DB Plan 
and adopting the City of Escanaba Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, (“Non-MERS Successor 
Plan”), a non-MERS pension plan qualified under IRC Section 401(a)  (“Resolution”) (a copy of 
which Resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit A), the terms of which Resolution are incorporated 
herein by reference; and 
 
Whereas, the Governing Body of Municipality (on behalf of Municipality) and MERS now desire 
to enter into this Agreement to effectuate the termination of Municipality’s participation in the DB 
Plan and to transfer the assets and liabilities to the Non-MERS Successor Plan; 
 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the above, MERS and Municipality agree as follows: 
 
1. Municipality represents and warrants that it has complied with and completed or met each of 

the requirements of Section 11 of the Plan Document and Section I, Phase One of the Policy 
on October 19, 2023, which date is defined as the Termination Date. 

 
2. Municipality and MERS represent, warrant and agree that each Party has complied with and 

completed or met each of the requirements of Section I, Phase Two of the Policy prior to the 
last date of execution of this Agreement. 

 
3.   Except as provided in Section 4 below, on February 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”): 
 

a. All Adoption Agreements, Participation Agreements and Administrative Services 
Agreements between MERS and Municipality regarding the DB Plan, and all associated 
mutual obligations, will be terminated;  

b. Municipality’s participation in the DB Plan will be terminated; 
c. All active members as of the Effective Date will be 100% vested in their accrued financial 

benefits as of the Termination Date, if required by law, and the service credit attributable 
to each deferred vested former member and active member (“Members”)  will be frozen as 
of the Termination Date; 

d. After MERS processes the February benefit payments to Retirees as provided in Section 4 
below, MERS will pay no further benefits and have no further liability to pay benefits to 
Members, or retirees and beneficiaries (“Retirees”). 

e. MERS will transfer the Transfer Amount (as defined in the next sentence), via wire transfer 
to the Non-MERS Successor Plan, and the Non-MERS Successor Plan will acknowledge 
receipt of the Transfer Amount in writing within one (1) business day. The Transfer 
Amount is equal to: (i) the fair market value of all assets attributable to the Municipality’s 
DB Plan as of October 31, 2023 (the “Valuation Date”) as set forth in the termination 
valuation conducted by MERS; minus (ii) the total amount required to make the November, 
December, January, and February benefit payments to Retirees as provided in Section 4 
below; 

f. MERS will no longer have any role, obligation or liability as an investment fiduciary under 
the Public Employees Retirement Security Investment Act, PA 314 of 1965 (“PERSIA”), 



 

3 
 

or a fiduciary, plan administrator and trustee under any common law, applicable law or 
regulation, and the Municipality will assume all such roles, obligations or liabilities as an 
investment fiduciary under PERSIA, a fiduciary, plan administrator and trustee under any 
common law, applicable law or regulation.  

g. Municipality will assume liability for all assets transferred, all liabilities for all benefits 
(except for the February benefit payments as provided in Section 4 below), and all 
responsibilities associated with the roles of investment fiduciary, fiduciary, plan 
administrator and trustee as set forth in PERSIA and under all other applicable state and 
federal common and statutory law and regulations, none of which roles, responsibilities or 
liabilities shall then remain with MERS for any purpose whatsoever. 

h. Investment income attributable to the Transfer Amount but not applied as of the Effective 
Date (the “Investment Income”) will be transferred to the Non-MERS Successor Plan as 
soon as is practicable. The Investment Income will be calculated by multiplying the 
average daily balance in the City’s MERS DB Plan Account from the Valuation Date 
through the Effective Date by the earnings rate for the MERS DB Plan from the Valuation 
Date through the Effective Date. MERS will provide reasonable documentation showing 
how the Investment Income was calculated. 

 
4. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, MERS will be responsible for 

processing the February benefit payments to Retirees.  
 

5. On and after the transfer of the Investment Income as provided in Section 3.h and the 
processing of the February benefit payments as provided in Section 4, no Indemnified Person 
as defined in paragraph 9 below shall have any liability whatsoever with respect to any 
applicable portion of the Transfer Amount, the Liability Amount; or any distribution or 
payment of benefits to or on behalf of any Participant or Retiree.  
 

6. MERS affirms that it has or will provide Municipality and the Non-MERS Successor Plan with 
all employee census and benefit provision data related to the DB Plan requested by 
Municipality and the Non-MERS Successor Plan reasonably needed to properly administer the 
Members’ and Retirees’ pension benefits, and that it will maintain such information and data 
for a period of one (1) year after the Effective Date. 
 

7. Municipality acknowledges that, pursuant to Article 9, Section 24 of the 1963 Michigan 
Constitution, accrued financial benefits of the Participants and Retirees shall not be impaired 
or diminished, and this prohibition extends to any impairment or diminution by reason of 
Municipality’s termination of participation in the DB Plan or the transfer of assets the Non-
MERS Successor Plan. 
 

8. Municipality understands and acknowledges that, in making its decision to enter into this 
Agreement, MERS has reasonably relied upon the following additional representations of 
Municipality that: 
 
a. Municipality’s Non-MERS Successor Plan is or is intended to be well-funded; 
b. The actuarial assumptions, if any, to be used in funding the Non-MERS Successor Plan 

are expected and intended to be reasonable; and 



 

4 
 

c. The Non-MERS Successor Plan will be administered by vendor(s) experienced in the 
administration of qualified plans; and 

d. The Non-MERS Successor Plan is qualified under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) 
and Municipality intends to maintain such qualification. 

 
9. MERS shall not be liable to Municipality or its officials, Members, Retirees,  or to any other 

Party (or to any person or entity claiming through a Party) for lost profits or for special, 
incidental, consequential or exemplary damages arising out of or in any manner connected with 
this Agreement or the subject matter hereof, regardless of the form of action (whether in 
contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise), and regardless of whether or not such Party 
has been informed of, or otherwise might have anticipated, the possibility of such damages.  
MERS’ liability will be limited to the greatest extent permitted by law.  Municipality hereby 
agrees and acknowledges that any liability for any such claims shall become the sole and 
exclusive responsibility of Municipality. 

 
10. Municipality shall indemnify and hold harmless MERS, its Board members, employees, 

agents, affiliates, successors, and assigns  (collectively, the “Indemnified Persons”) from and 
against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs of any type or description, 
whether awarded by a court or by settlement, attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred by any 
Indemnified Person to which any of them may incur arising from the DB Plan, the subject 
matter of this Agreement, or any matter related to either (a “Claim Against MERS”), except to 
the extent that any such losses, claims, damages, liabilities, fines, penalties, or costs arose as a 
direct result of negligence or willful misconduct of MERS.  Municipality will reimburse each 
Indemnified Person for their reasonable legal and other expenses (including the cost of any 
investigation and preparation) as they are incurred in connection with any action, proceeding 
or investigation arising out of or based upon the foregoing.  The indemnity and reimbursement 
obligations of Municipality shall be in addition to any liability which Municipality may 
otherwise have (including, without limitation, liability for breach of any duty associated with 
Municipality’s roles as investment fiduciary (under PERSIA), fiduciary, plan administrator or 
trustee (under all other applicable state or federal common or statutory laws or regulations)).  
MERS shall provide Municipality prompt written notice of any Claim Against MERS.  No 
matter in which an Indemnified Person is Party arising out of the subject matter of this 
Agreement may be settled or otherwise consensually resolved without MERS’ express written 
consent. 
 

11. Municipality agrees that it may not cancel, terminate nor revoke this Agreement, and that this 
Agreement shall survive any termination, dissolution, privatization, bankruptcy or other 
change in structure or identity of Municipality and shall be binding upon Municipality’s 
successors and assigns.  All obligations under this Agreement and the representations, 
warranties, covenants, agreements and acknowledgments herein contained shall be deemed to 
be made by and binding upon each Municipality and its successors. 

12. The Agreement contains the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and commitments with respect thereto.  
There are no other oral or written understandings, terms or conditions with respect to the 
subject matter of the Agreement, and neither Party has relied upon any representation, express 
or implied, not contained in the Agreement.  All Parties hereto have had benefit of counsel and 



 

5 
 

have participated in the drafting of this Agreement and no term herein shall be construed 
against any Party as drafter. All Parties hereto agree that they have full right, power, authority 
and capacity to enter into and execute the Agreement and do so of their own volition. 
 

13. The Parties agree to cooperate fully and execute any and all documents and to take all 
additional actions necessary to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of this 
Agreement. 
 

14. This Agreement and any and all disputes arising directly or indirectly from the Agreement 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan, without regard to its conflict of law 
provisions.  The Parties hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Circuit 
Court of the State of Michigan for Delta County for all suits, actions or proceedings directly 
or indirectly arising out of or relating to the Agreement, and waive any and all objections to 
such courts, including but not limited to objections based on improper venue or inconvenient 
forum. 
 

15. The rights and remedies of the Parties are cumulative and not alternative.  No waiver of any 
rights is to be charged against any Party unless such waiver is in writing signed by an 
authorized representative of the Party so charged.  Neither the failure of nor any delay by any 
Party in exercising any right, power, or privilege under the Agreement will operate as a waiver 
of such right, power, or privilege, and no single or partial exercise of any such right, power, or 
privilege will preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power, or privilege or the 
exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. 
 

16. No modification of or amendment to the Agreement will be effective unless in writing, signed 
by authorized representatives of both Parties. 
 

17. If any provision of the Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the other provisions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect, and, if 
legally permitted, such offending provision will be replaced with an enforceable provision that 
as nearly as possible effectuates the Parties’ intent. 
 

18. Neither Party may assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations under the 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent such Party may 
grant or withhold in its sole and absolute discretion.  Any purported or attempted assignment 
or other transfer or delegation in violation of this Section shall be null and void. 
 

19. All provisions of this Agreement survive the discharge of the duties and obligations set forth 
above. 
 

20. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an 
original, and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute the complete executed 
agreement.  The signature of any Party transmitted by facsimile, electronic mail or other 
electronic means shall have the same effect as an original signature. 

 



 

6 
 

Wherefore, by the authorized signatures set out below, this Agreement is effective as of the last 
date of such signature.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

For Municipality:     For MERS: 

________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
Printed Name:_____________________  Printed Name:________________________ 

Its:__________________________   Its:_______________________________ 

Date:________________________   Date:_____________________________ 

 
88620:00002:200220417-1 





Michigan Department 
of Transportation

2207B (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolut ion) is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 

purposes of issuing to a Municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way'', and/or 

an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way''.

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the  
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the ''MUNICIPALITY,'' periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as ''PERMIT,'' to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolut ion shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or
omissions during the performance of this Resolut ion , as provided by law. This Resolut ion is not
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted,
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising
out of the performance of this Agreement.

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims for damages to public or private
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance
of the MUNICIPALITY Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT’S specific prior
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY.

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission,
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway R ight of Way resulting from the
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY’S facilities according to a
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.



6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the   
(Name of Board, etc.)

of the  of 
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

 meeting held on the _______day at a 

of ______________________ A.D. ________________. 

Print Signed Name

MDOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

 Title

Signed 


	Agenda Packet
	01.18.2024 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm01.04.2024
	cm01.09.2024 work session
	NB-1
	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20240111_130035

	NB-3
	NB-4
	City Council Agenda Item Request -Concrete Pile Bid-Revisit 1
	Crushed Concrete Pile Quatities (as of 011224)

	NB-5
	NB-6
	NB-6
	2207B MDOT Resolution

	MX-M363N_20240112_162731 (1)


	MERS Withdrawal Agreement

	Date: 1-11-24
	Name: Kent Dubord
	Department: Public Works
	Item: Concrete Pile Bid
	Explanation:      The City of Escanaba received one (1) bid for the concrete pile crushing. The bid is for $5.50 a ton from Havelka Construction to do the crushing. We are seeking approval to have Havelka Construction finish doing the work. We are looking for approval for 4,000 tons of concrete more than the original bid crushed into 22A gravel material. Seeking approval for $22,000 more to have the remaining pile crushed. 
     The 22A gravel will be used for street projects. By grounding up the material we can use it and sell some material to pay for a portion of the costs. The work is expected to be completed by March 1st, 2024. 

	Date Requested: 1-18-24
	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: City of Escanaba
	Text2: 
	0: Terry Flower, Assistant Engineer
	1: Steve Leneker, Engineering Assistant II
	2: 
	3: 

	Text3: City Council
	Text4: City of Escanaba
	Text5: Delta
	Text6: regular
	Text7: 18th
	Text8: January
	Text9: 2024
	Text11: City Manager
	Print Signed Name: James McNeil


